MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE AMES CITY COUNCIL
AMES, IOWA DECEMBER 13, 2008

The Ames City Council met in special session at 8:30 amthe 18 day of December, 2008, in
the Parks and Recreation Activity Room, 1500 Gatewayg Réirk Drive, pursuant to law with
Mayor Campbell, Council Members Doll, Goodman, Larddahayni, Popken, and Rice anxl e
officio Member Tracy present. City Manager Steve Schainkssistant City Manager Bob
Kindred, City Attorney Doug Marek, and City Clerk Diane9$ were also in attendance.
Assistant City Manager Sheila Lundt arrived at 10:50 a.m.

UPDATE ON EXISTING CITY COUNCIL GOALS/OBJECTIVES: City Manager Steve
Schainker stated that the purpose of this meeting wes/iaw the goals set or reaffirmed by
the City Council on January 12, 2007. He noted thainteat was also to bring the Council
together to forge a shared vision. Mr. Schainker vexiethe steps that had been directed by
the City Council and presented the status of each qirthaously set goals, as follows:

Goal No. 1: Rejuvenate Campustown Council Member Goodman indicated that he was a
proponent of redeveloping Campustown; however, there mighhdse who do not want
Campustown to change. Mr. Schainker emphasized that hlageenot been any permanent
changes decided on at this point, but the University lgased to engage the services of
RDG to determine the feasibility of developing the klowest of Welch as generally
proposed some time ago by Scott Randall. Council MemRimer asked for a copy of the
“Randall Plan.” City Manager Schainker pointed out that €ity will not be able to force
any redevelopment as the property in question is privatehed.

Goal No. 2: “Go Green” Council Member Goodman recalled that the Council had
previously requested to know if it were possible to requitED standards (energy-efficient
design) on all proposals for construction projects. &itprney Doug Marek advised that it
is possible, but that must be decided prior to preparationh® project’s plans and
specifications. Council Member Goodman voiced his opirthat more money could be
spent on the design up-front, which would save money thraerggrgy-efficiency over time.

Council Member Popken indicated that the direction gieestaff regarding researching the
“Energy Star” Rating System was very broad. He wolld to see some mechanism to
promote energy-efficiency in commercial buildings. QWgnager Schainker stated that the
goal specifically referenced the promotion of “EnergyarStratings. Council Member
Goodman suggested that discussions occur with realtorglaes i a forum-type format.

Regarding recycling, Mayor Campbell reported that additioriaimation on Ames’ efforts

needs to get out to the student population. Council MePbpken asked for a comparison
among the City and other cities regarding how much Ameegcles and how much material
has to go to a landfil. Council Member Larson pointeat that there has been no
information distributed mentioning the disposal of elagirs. Assistant City Manager Bob
Kindred advised that Goodwill Industries is the largesyadlec of computers and Best Buy
accepts up to two computers at a time for recyclingvalt suggested that computer disposal
options be listed in the next Resource Recovery n&esle

Regarding a fare-free public transportation system foridérs (not just students), Mr.
Schainker advised that, in 2009/10, CyRide will see an 8¥ease in its budget just to



retain the same level of service. If the City decidesnplement a totally fare-free system,
the City and ISU Administration would need to increate funding by an additional
$163,000 plus the 8%. A grant applied for was not funded. Mr.irfkehanoted that the
students are already paying more to subsidize the fadesyitem. He advised that, because
of cutbacks in state funding, support from ISU for this n@tative might not be received.
Council Member Larson pointed out that a totally faeefsystem received low support in
the City’'s Resident Satisfaction Survey. Council Mem@oodman said that he was very
much in support of a totally fare-free system during tihamser months only. He referenced
information received from Transit Director Sheri Kgr which indicated that an increase in
ridership would secure additional federal monies oreastl ensure the retention of those
currently being received. It was stated that if a-feze system were approved, no fee could
be charged for Dial-a-Ride services either. Discussiosued as to the deficits being seen
for Dial-a-Ride and if those could be remedied if a bifesd, e.g., a quarter, could be
charged to all riders. Council Member Doll emphasizetl tthea system is not “fare-free” for
students; they pay a fee through their tuition for CyRitlether or not they use its services.

Council Member Goodman strongly believes that thewauldhbe a program for fare-free
summers for two reasons: (1) to show commitment ¢o“gineen” concept (through the use
of public transportation) and (2) for the possible foiahbenefits from federal sources due
to increased ridership. He asked to have a better extjplarof the amount referenced in
Ms. Kyras’ memo.

Council Member Doll advised that he is not against ae*feee” (subsidized) program for
CyRide, but he feels that it might be more benefilahave a small charge and expand
CyRide routes. He reasoned that more residents coudsibpo then take public
transportation to their work sites.

Council Member Mahayni said that it is oftentimes eneponvenient and less expensive to
drive; however, the cost and availability of parking is ithpetus for people to use public
transportation.

Council Member Larson asked if any statistical analysa&d been done with the University
routes removed to find out the ridership numbers. Notiag sbme City routes have very
few, if any, riders, and diesel fuel is costly, he pedhout that mass transit is not always less
expensive.

Regarding global warming emissions, Council Member Lraesked to receive an update on
the feasibility study to convert the City's RDF tm4{arude, which was to be prepared by
Prairie Rivers RC & D.

Council Member Goodman suggested that AMOS continue towmdved in the City's
efforts to educate the public on global warming strategiée topic of utilizing the services
offered by AMOS led to a discussion of the City's engtboards and commissions. It was
suggested that a task force be formed to specifically asldegtain issues. It could simply
disband when no longer needed, which would require no faaatan by the City Council.
Council Member Popken recommended that a “go green” task foe created by the City
specifically to (1) get information out to the public a(®) foster involvement by the
community. He suggested that staff determine what oth&s cre doing concerning
environment sustainability. Council Member Mahayoneurred, stating that after those
contacts had been made, the City could design a programwitiks for the Ames

2



community. He cited two specific issues: education awmtintdogy. Council Member
Larson suggested that meetings be held with the HomeswAssociation, Realtor
Association, etc. It was noted that, when a surveptlodr cities is performed, it is important
to define the charge of other communities’ sustaitgbdiommissions or task forces.
Council Member Rice asked if additional staff would bedeee City Manager Schainker
said that the Council should determine what outcomes éixpecting. If the formation of
another City-appointed commission is formed, it witjuige more staff time.

Moved by Popken, seconded by Goodman, to direct staffdeider a report to the City
Council by June 1, 2009, as to: (1) what other cities arggdo promote sustainability, (2)
how they are doing it, and (3) what other organized grougsinrnAmes (e.g., AMOS,
homebuilders, realtors, etc.). are already doing inrégard.

Vote on Motion: 6-0. Motion declared carried unanimausly

It was agreed that the goal in giving this direction is Agmes to become a leader in
environmental sustainability.

Moved by Mahayni, seconded by Popken, to direct thatCihe take an inventory of its
current efforts towards sustainability.
Vote on Motion: 6-0. Motion declared carried unanimausly

Goal No. 3: Strengthen Neighborhoods No additional discussion.

Goal No. 4: Promote “One Community” Mayor Campbell asked if annual meetings
should be held with other governmental organizatiomisarCity and County.

Moved by Popken, seconded by Larson, to host a meetimg etreer year with the City of
Gilbert, City of Nevada, Ames Community School DdtriGilbert Community School
District, United Community School District, Ames Ecomo Development Commission/
Chamber of Commerce, Smart Growth Alliance, Conwgent& Visitors Bureau,
Government of the Student Body, Mary Greeley Medicait€e Boone County Board of
Supervisors, and Story County Board of Supervisors to disous coordinate future plans.
Vote on Motion: 6-0. Motion declared carried unanimausly

The meeting recessed at 10:30 a.m. and reconvened at 10:40 a.m.
Goal No. 5: “Brand” Ames. Council Member Rice suggested that the City's effoots t

“pbrand Ames” be expanded. Council Member Doll recommeritat the City advertise the
“greatness” of Ames.

Goal No. 6: Define Desired Growth Referencing the Council's efforts at its last Goal-
Setting Session, Council Member Larson believes ttietie is a segment of the community
who believes that the definition of “defining growtls"incomplete.

DISCUSSION OF SUGGESTED ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCIL MEM BERS: City
Manager Schainker reviewed the list of items submitye@ity members.

1. Fare-Free CyRide City Manager Schainker advised that this issue wilatddressed at
budget time.




2. How to eliminate 3-to-3 votes by the City Coun€lity Attorney Marek explained that
the City of Ames has operated under a “Home Rule” typehaifrter since the early
1970s. There are two ways that the charter could begetlail) The Council could
cause a new proposed charter to be prepared and filed,emdytresolution, it could be
submitted to the voters at a special election; or (Rjible electors could petition the
Council, which would require the Council to appoint a Gira@ommission. If a petition
signed by a number of eligible electors equal to at 3% of the persons who voted in
the last Regular City Election were filed, the Counailwd appoint a Special Charter
Commission [between five (5) and 15 members] to dragkwa proposed charter. That
new proposed charter would be submitted to the votersspee@al election. Any new
charter would have to provide for an odd number of Conmaihbers, not less than five.

Discussion ensued over the necessity of changinghidmter to prevent votes ending in a
tie. Council Member Larson indicated that he had heaoth frepresentatives on the
Ames Economic Development Commission (AEDC) and asigzthat there had been a
number of issues not moving forward because the voterded in a three-to-three vote.
He feels that this is making the City ineffective amefficient. Mr. Larson also believes
that the current charter lends itself to an ineffitiway to get results from City staff.

The Mayor said that she would be opposed to changing thegeCha one where the
Mayor would vote on Resolutions and Ordinances. She tleat the role of Mayor is to
conduct the meeting in as unbiased of a manner as gossibl

Council Member Larson believes that Ames is the aitlyof the top 15 largest cities in
the state to have an even-number of members electegri@ on its City Council.
Although not in favor of changing the City’'s charterpudcil Member Goodman
suggested that the public decide; if 25% are passionate abangicg it and sign a
petition, it would go forward for a vote.

Mayor Campbell suggested that the Council's two repredergaon the Ames
Economic Development Commission report the resultlisfdiscussion to the AEDC.

The meeting recessed at 11:55 a.m. and reconvened at 12:04 p.m.

3. How can the Council take a proactive role in recmitirighborhood leaders who would
help with issues, e.g., promoting the Property Maintena@ogle or Inclusive
Community Initiatives Discussion ensued on a variety of suggestions, inclu¢ing:an
outgrowth of the Community Conversations group, which Wwasé¢ach Council Member
recruit a person from each precinct in his ward tal eeir individual neighborhoods.
The liaison would be responsible for communicating infrom from the City to the
residents of that precinct. The goal would be getting beighinteracting with each
other and working together. It was also suggestedbatbers of the Leadership Ames
or the Citizens Academy groups be instrumental in fin@dingerson from each precinct
that would serve as the liaison. A recommendationmade that a block party “trailer”
be purchased and reserved through that Neighborhood Liaison.

Council Member Rice suggested that the City’'s role shbveldo make sure that the
structure is in place, but “neighborhoods should be allotwedo what neighborhoods
do.” Assistance with the cost of creating and distniigua newsletter would be helpful.
He disagreed with Council Members recruiting a persam fach precinct, as he doesn't

4



know what those persons would be responsible to do. d@oMember Goodman

clarified that the Council’'s goal would be to strengthelationships within and among
neighborhoods. Council Member Popken advised that hihéeliepresentative would be
responsible for connecting with his or her neighbochand communicating information
to those residents.

The Mayor described a program that was being createdglalph Rosenberg and Story
County Extension to strengthen neighborhoods.

The Mayor suggested that Council Members Goodman andLasdothe Community
Conversations group to come up with a “job description'each Neighborhood Liaison.
He suggested that the representative be responsible dimoming new residents,
reserving the block party “trailer,” and communicatinghwieighbors.

Assistant City Manager Lundt suggested that the HumaniéteaCommission and the
Breaking Down the Barriers groups could assist in findingyiN®rhood Liaisons. The
City Council and staff would provide the structure. Ms.dtureported that the Breaking
Down the Barriers members recently named dealing eitérsity issues as its mission.
Council Member Larson noted that the Human Relationsnr@ission role is not
necessarily to deal with diversity issues or neighbodhesues. City Manager Schainker
suggested that Assistant City Manager Lundt present thaadie Breaking Down the
Barriers members. If they are wiling to take on thsk, they could develop a “job
description” for Neighborhood Liaisons (aka precingiresentatives). Council Member
Larson pointed out that strengthening neighborhoods i€ mba communication issue
and not necessarily a diversity issue.

It was the consensus of the Council that Ms. Lundt wiksent the issue (of
neighborhood liaisons being responsible for communigatith their neighbors and
attempting to get neighbors to interact with each ¢therthe Breaking Down the
Barriers and Human Relations Commission membersédaf skey are willing to work on
it and what their suggestions are for facilitating 8he will report back to the Council in
the near future.

Create a plan to develop industrial land to the e@gly Manager Schainker advised that,
under the City’'s agreement with Wolford Development, diegeloper is responsible to
extend the sanitary sewer line and the water linedaetst across his property. Specific
language in the Agreement alludes to “when developmentitigtea,” and it is not
certain when that would be. That language is imporgsnthe City has the option to
require Mr. Wolford to extend the sewer and water lifeenvconstruction of the Life
Style Center begins. It was pointed out that plans aadifgfations had been created to
allow utilities to be extended to the Regional Commaérsite in the spring. The City
Manager advised that there are still many obstacletheéoCity’'s development of an
industrial park to the east, i.e., how to pay for gralland utilities; the strategy is not yet
known. Council Member Popken requested that the City y&anhave an informal
discussion with Mr. Wolford concerning the City movirfiead in the future to create an
industrial park to the east of his property.

Council Member Larson wondered if it would be possiblepen up the Power Center
portion of the Regional Commercial development firsameffort to increase the City’s
Local Option Sales Tax proceeds. Council Member Goodsaath that he wants all

5



energy to be generated towards the development of th@fdgommercial portion (to
the north), not the south portion (Power Center).

Reaffirm and enhance the City's commitment to “Gofeen” and engage citizens
more in this endeavor Moved by Larson, seconded by Popken, to direct tleaiCity
partner with private sector groups (AMOS, Ames Homebuildasociation, Realtors
Association) to develop a plan to create Energy Starewvess.

Vote on Motion: 6-0. Motion declared carried unanimausly

Work towards establishing “complete streetSduncil Member Rice would like the City
to plan for the use of roundabouts and ways to creat@utoiless community in the
future. He feels that it is inevitable and the Chig@d be prepared.

Moved by Goodman, seconded by Rice, to direct staff thlaén the City constructs or
redevelops arterial and collector streets, they explereost with on-street bicycle paths
and without on-street bicycle paths.

Vote on Motion: 6-0. Motion declared carried unanimausly

Council Member Rice asked how it would be determined venetin not the on-street
bicycle path should be constructed. Council Goodman sugh#isée on-street bicycle
paths be constructed if the cost does not add any mamel @96 of the total cost.

Mr. Goodman raised the issue of the City’s currentllef@nforcement regarding snow
removal on bike paths and/or sidewalks. City ManageaiSkér pointed out that there
are already policies in place and asked if the Counaikvdirecting a change in the
service level. Mr. Goodman said that he was noawoif of the City cleaning the snow
from sidewalks. Mayor Campbell suggested that the Cityagknon a public relations
campaign to educate the public to call in when sidewalksnat cleaned. Council
Member Larson requested that the Council be informedtatibe City’'s current policies
regarding snow removal.

Moved by Goodman, seconded by Popken, to direct staff iadera report to the City
Council on its current policies regarding snow removainfrsidewalks and shared-use
paths with the goal of eventually providing for safe mmibdal transportation in all
types of weather on sidewalks and shared-use paths oalateets.

Vote on Motion: 6-0. Motion declared carried unanimausly

Update on sustainable neighborhaodS8ouncil Member Popken referenced the email
received from Debbie Lee pertaining to residential proge along Lincoln Way that are
not well-kempt and are currently for sale. City Mama§ehainker advised that tax
abatement or fagade improvement funds could be usedsigt Hge owner in improving
the property. It was questioned whether a Property Elaamice Code could be the
mechanism to resolve the issue. Council Member Goondsaa@ that he would like to
give the Property Maintenance Code a chance to workswlving such matters.

Is a parking deck needed in Downtown in the next ten ydamas pointed out that the
City’s Traffic Engineer is working on this, and no fuethdiscussion occurred.

Increased funding for the Artd.imited discussion centered on COTA funding. Council
Member Rice reiterated that he did not want to cutfartding. It was pointed out that,

6




at its meeting of November 25, the City Council had meoended a ten percent (10%)
increase over last year’s allocation for COTA..

10. Review the existing work plan of the Planning & Housingd&ement Council Member
Popken asked that the Planning staff move up No. 14 dstte/hich is to review Code
provisions pertaining to the installation of solar pgaiaed wind turbines in Ames.

Since there is not an open workshop date for the Countil April 2009, Mr. Kindred
suggested that the Council meet with the Planning & Zo@ommission in the near
future prior to a Regular City Council meeting to reviesweferrals and priorities

Other Issues Mayor Campbell said that she and the City Managessussed the list of
organizations to which Council members have typidadlgn members to see if those are still
worth the investment of time and funding. She spetyficaferenced the Metro Coalition.
She and Bob Kindred have been representing the Cityeitetphone conference calls, but
the Mayor welcomed all Council members to participatielr. Kindred advised that no
additional funds will be due by the City for next fisgahr as the Coalition over-estimated
what was owed by each City last year.

Council Member Larson briefed the Mayor and Council nrirdernational Town & Gown
Association Conference that he and City Manager Skbniattended at Texas A & M
University. He explained that the City and Universityuld become members of the
organization for $800/year each. Mr. Larson thoughtatld be beneficial for the City and
University to join this organization. It was concutrthat the Mayor and City Manager
would discuss membership in the Town and Gown Assoniatrath University
representatives.

Moved by Larson, seconded by Goodman, to approve the j@itypng the International
Town and Gown Association at the $800 level contingent tip@iJniversity also joining.
Vote on Motion: 6-0. Motion declared carried unanimausly

The Mayor brought up that the Council's travel expensesirage to rise as more Council
members are opting to attend National Conferences ofter and staying longer. Councll
Member Larson suggested that each Council member beedlldo attend one national
conference per year.

Regarding the combined lobbying efforts of the City, Chamdd Commerce, and the Ames
Economic Development Commission, it has come to WMayor’'s attention that
representatives from the other two entities areanatlable due to spring break to attend the
National League of Cities Conference (NLC) to be hmidMarch 14 — 18, 2009. The
Chamber and AEDC have requested that City represetajiveto Washington, DC, the
week before the NLC Conference in order to continuectirabined lobbying efforts. The
Mayor pointed out that if City representatives wentweek before the NLC Conference, it
would require them missing the Council workshop on theajbrexpansion discussion,
which is scheduled for March 10. Council Member Rice esged his disapproval of
changing the Council’'s workshop with the library consuiascheduled for March 10.

The Mayor suggested that representatives of the lowguieele contacted to see what it will
be presenting to the federal legislators. Council Menftbpken would like to have an item



on the Council's agenda to determine what issues theg Wit be taking before the
legislators so that the members are prepared.

It was the consensus that the Mayor, Council Memiogkén, and City Manager Schainker
will serve as the City's representatives to lobbyhviite representatives of the other entities
on March 11 and 12, 2009. Mayor Campbell will also atteed\thC Conference, but Mr.
Popken will not. Council Member Doll indicated that heght be attending the NLC
Conference.

COMMENTS: Council Member Goodman recalled an individual who canfieré¢he Council
asking that the City form a Sister City arrangement laost a delegation from the Darfur
Region. He felt such an arrangement could be explorédebimes of International Partner
Cities Association (AIPCA). Mr. Goodman added that saicharrangement would be even
more valuable because the people in the Darfur Regiors@arewuch different than the
majority of our population.

Moved by Goodman, seconded by Rice, to ask the AIPCAxpore the possibility of
entertaining a delegation from Darfur.

Council Member Mahayni pointed out that an airlin&eicfrom that Region to lowa would
cost a minimum of $2,000.

The Mayor questioned whether taxpayer money should be aseddh a purpose; it should
not be used to provide international aid.

Mr. Kindred advised that the AIPCA follows the doctriokthe International Sister City

Organization. He gave the history of Sister City mgeaments in Ames. The first Sister City
was Loha, Ecuador; however, when it became morefa@feggn-aid mission, the partnership
ended.

Vote on Motion: 2-4. Voting aye: Goodman, Rice. iWgtnay: Doll, Larson, Mahayni,
Popken. Motion failed.

The meeting adjourned at 3:34 p.m.

Diane R. Voss, City Clerk Ann H. Campbell, Mayor



